
Minutes 
 

1 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Meeting details 
Date: Wednesday, June 14th, 2023 

Time: 10:00am - 12:00 pm 
Location: Zoom 
 
 
Committee members and alternates present 

 
 
Committee members and alternates absent 
 

Employee Representatives 
• Joe Kendo, Washington State Labor Council 
• Cindy Richardson, UNITE HERE Local 8 
• Josh Swanson, Operating Engineers 302 
• Brenda Wiest, Teamsters 117 

 
Employer Representatives 
• Bob Battles, Association of Washington Business 
• Julia Gorton, Washington Hospitality Association 
• Tammie Hetrick, WA Food Industry Association  

 
General Public Representatives 
• Anne Paxton, Unemployment Law Project 
• William Westmoreland, Pac Mtn WF Dev Council 
 

 

• Josie Cummings, Building Industry 
Association of Washington (employer rep) 

• Monica Holland, Northwest Justice Project 
(alternate public rep) 

• Sybill Hyppolite, Washington State Labor 
Council (employee rep) 

• Allyson O’Malley-Jones, Northwest Justice 
Project (alternate public rep) 

• Courtney Williams, Community 
Employment Alliance (public rep) 
 
 

ESD staff  
• Joy Adams 
• Danielle Cruver 
• Joshua Dye 
• Vaughn Ellis 
• Camille Galeno 
• Caitlyn Jekel 
• Matt LaPalm 
• Marypat Meuli 
• Scott Michael 
• JR Richards 
• Stephanie Sams 

 

Unemployment Insurance 
Advisory Committee 



Minutes 
 

2 
 

 

• Dan Zeitlin 
 

 

Summary 
 
Meeting Recorded 
This meeting was recorded and also livestreamed by TVW.  
 
Welcome and Opening Remarks 

• Unemployment Insurance Customer Support Director, JR Richards, welcomed everyone and 
asked committee assistant Camille Galeno to call roll.  

 
Meeting Minutes 
JR Richards requested that everyone review the March 2023 meeting minutes and provide their 
feedback. Josh Swanson made a motion to approve the minutes and Bob Battles seconded the motion. 
JR asked for all members in favor to say, “Aye.” All members responded, “Aye”. JR asked members 
that oppose to say, “Nay.” No one responded. The March 31st, 2023 meeting minutes were approved.  
 
Agenda  
JR Richards reviewed the following agenda items (also see Addendum I.) 
 

• Legislative Session & Rulemaking Updates 
• Project Portfolio 
• EAMS Project Closeout 
• 2022 Average Annual Wage & WBA 
• Overpayments Update 
• Meeting Cadence 

 
Agency Request Legislation - update 
 
JR Richards handed the meeting over to Caitlyn Jekel, Government Relations Director, ESD and Scott 
Michael, Legal Services Manager, ESD to provide updates on the legislative session and rulemaking. 
Caitlyn and Scott provided updates on the following bills and their rulemaking impact (table on next 
page). 

https://tvw.org/video/unemployment-insurance-advisory-committee-2023061028/?eventID=2023061028


Minutes 
 

3 
 

 

 
 
Bob Battles asked a question regarding bill #1106 and the expanded definition of Paid Family Medical Leave 
(PFML), and whether there will be separate analysis on the PFML review. No answer on this from ESD 
currently, as the plan is to do a copy. Bob commented he will review and return to this topic at a later date.  
 
Josh Swanson asked a question regarding bill #1458 and the process and timeline for the formation of a work 
group. Caitlyn answered that ESD is working to bring together subject matter experts, and a starting call will 
be scheduled soon with a short list of individuals representing registered apprenticeship programs that are 
interested in engaging with ESD. Josh commented that apprentices are currently completing their training in 
preparation to begin work, and that he would be happy to assist with the workgroup process and looks 
forward to the results.  
Bob Battles commented that he will reach out with a list of business names for the workgroup. 
Josh asked what the work group representation is. Caitlyn responded that the bill did not dictate the 
membership of the representation, and that ESD is looking into dispersing the work among members of the 
group based on interest.  
 
Scott Michael provided an overview the rulemaking impact of bill #1570 providing unemployment insurance 
to transportation network company drivers.  
 
Caitlyn and Scott then advanced to the next slide and provided updates on the following bills: 



Minutes 
 

4 
 

 

 
 
No questions were raised on these items. Caitlyn then advanced to the next slide and provided updates on the 
following: 

 
 
No questions were raised. Caitlyn advanced to the next slide and provided updates on the following: 



Minutes 
 

5 
 

 

 
 
Julia Gorton remarked that she’d be happy to assist with connecting employers to the interview no-
show data project. Julia also asked what types of activities might be done related to the excluded 
workers research. Caitlyn answered that as this work concluded a couple of years ago, ESD is not 
actively engaging in additional research, but are responding to requests as they come in.  
 
Caitlyn handed the presentation over to Scott Michael to discuss agency-initiated rulemaking activities: 

 
 
No questions were raised. Committee Chair JR Richards then presented the following three slides and 
gave an overview of ESD’s Portfolio Management: 



Minutes 
 

6 
 

 

 
 

 



Minutes 
 

7 
 

 

 
 
No questions were raised. The meeting was paused for a 10-minute break. 
 
The meeting reconvened after the break, and JR welcomed Judy Dew, ESD’s IT Tax and Wage 
Systems Manager to discuss the Employer Account Management System (EAMS) project closeout. 
Judy presented on the following bullet points regarding the EAMS Legacy System Replacement: 

 



Minutes 
 

8 
 

 

 
NGTS = next generation tax system. 
 
Bob Battles asked: how does the new EAMS system communicate with other internal systems such as 
paid family and medical leave? How are upgrades such as this made compatible with employer and 
employee use? Judy answered that the main system the new EAMS communicates with is NGTS. 
There are talks about modernization for a one-stop-shop for employers to file taxes. JR also confirmed 
that this type of info-sharing modernization is in the works as a longer-term goal, where the EAMS 
replacement was an ongoing project which needed to be completed for the benefit of employers. 
 
JR then welcomed Matt Klein, Operations Research Specialist to discuss the Average Annual Wage for 
2022 and WBA. Matt presented on the following: 

 
 
Joe Kendo asked what the current minimum and maximum benefit amounts are. Matt answered that 
the amounts are $317 (min) and $999 (max). 
 
JR then provided an update on ESD’s overpayment project. Using the following three slides, JR 
discussed the overpayment outreach campaign, how equity and good conscience apply to this project, 
and gave an overview of the project timeline including the hiring process for the overpayment waiver 
team and a plan for waiver assistance: 



Minutes 
 

9 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Julia Gorton asked for clarification on example #2 and noted that there are concerns around providing 
benefits to an individual who is incarcerated and therefore not able and available to work. JR clarified 
that the individual provided information to ESD on their incarceration after being released and were 
paid benefits anyway. Joy Adams, Deputy Director of Employment System Policy and Integrity, ESD 
also added that the agency carries more of the fault in this situation because the claimant provided the 
relevant information and payment was made regardless. Bob Battles asked what allowed for the 
conditional payment to be made. Joy answered that this would be an error investigated thoroughly by 



Minutes 
 

10 
 

 

quality assurance. JR added that in this case there was a breakdown in new programming with changing 
rules.  
Brenda Wiest asked where limited English proficiency fits into this and whether this would be an area 
captured by fault, equity and good conscience. JR responded that yes, it would and that as ESD looks 
at these on an individual basis, as much space as possible is being created for fault, equity and good 
conscience, and for the claimant to tell their story fully. 
 
JR then moved on to the next slide and presented an overpayments project timeline overview: 
 

 
 
With no further questions on overpayments, JR then moved to the topic of UIAC meeting cadence. 
The following meeting cadence was proposed: 



Minutes 
 

11 
 

 

 
 
Brenda Weist commented that this cadence makes sense but flagged early September (post Labor Day) 
as a busy time. Bob Battles agreed that a once monthly meeting is not necessary outside of legislative 
session. Josh Swanson also approved of this proposed schedule, with a note that early September near 
Labor Day is busy. Julia Gorton moved to approve the meeting cadence. JR called for all in favor, and 
all opposed. There were no opposed, and the above meeting cadence was approved.  
 
Action Items 
None 
 
Public Comments 
JR reminded meeting participants that if they would like their comments captured in the meeting 
minutes to please email them to Camille.galeno@esd.wa.gov  
 
Lexy Salas asked for a list of the types of blanket waiver additions that ESD submitted to DOL. Lexy 
was provided with a list via email.  
 
 
Adjourned 

JR Richards thanked everyone for joining today and ended the meeting. 

 

Next meeting 

 
August 2nd, 2023, from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. via Zoom.  

mailto:Camille.galeno@esd.wa.gov


Minutes 
 

12 
 

 

Addendum 1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 


